Minutes of the Livingston Parish Council Livingston, Louisiana January 24, 2019

The Livingston Parish Council met in regular session duly called, advertised, and convened at its regular meeting place, the Parish Council Chambers, Governmental Building, 20355 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana, on Thursday, January 24, 2019, at the hour of six (6:00) o'clock p.m. with the following Livingston Parish Council members present:

John Wascom Tracy Girlinghouse

Garry "Frog" Talbert R.C. "Bubba" Harris Tab Lobell Maurice "Scooter" Keen Jeff Averett Shane Mack

Absent: Jeff Ard

Absent for roll call: Jeff Averett, Councilman Averett arrived tardy for the Council meeting and

entered the Council chambers at six-eleven (6:11) p.m. and was present for

all votes in the meeting

Also present: Layton Ricks, Parish President

Christopher Moody, Parish Legal Counsel

The chair asked the public to please mute or turn off their cell phones.

The chair announced that Public Input would be accepted from any member of the audience wishing to address an agenda item.

The chair addressed agenda item 7, "Presentations:". Having no Presentations, the chair wished to acknowledge the newly installed electronic equipment that had been upgraded in the Council chambers. He briefly explained the measures taken by Mr. Wayne Glascock of Channel 17 and Justin and Michael Thornhill of Nortech. He thanked them for their hard work and expressed his excitement of the new technology that the Councilmembers would have availability to now.

The chair addressed agenda item 8:

Adoption of the Minutes:

- a. December 6, 2018 regular meeting of the Council
- b. December 20, 2018 regular meeting of the Council
- c. January 6, 2019 regular meeting of the Council

LPR NO. 19-023

MOTION was made by Tracy Girlinghouse and duly seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to dispense with the reading of the minutes dated for the December 6, 2018 regular meeting of the Council, the December 20, 2018 regular meeting of the Council and the January 6, 2019 regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council and adopt as written.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item 9, "Discussion of residential recycling proposals" and called upon Mr. Donald Hains, Waste Management Public Sector Solutions representative.

Mr. Hains had been invited by the Councilmembers to address and discuss residential recycling options that Waste Management could provide to the residents of Livingston Parish by providing information and educational materials. Mr. Hains was very excited to be provided with the opportunity to use the newly installed electronic equipment that had just been installed in the

Council chambers to present his power point presentation in regard to Waste Management's recycling options.

Mr. Hains provided the Councilmembers and the Council clerk and Deputy clerk with a professional folder of handout material that was included in his power point presentation. He presented an extremely informative presentation furnishing alternatives to residential recycling. He explained the extreme costs borne from recycling and the mandates that have been placed recently by China, the main exporter. Mr. Hains answered many, many questions from the Councilmembers.

The chair requested if the audience members had any public input.

Public input: Muriel Laws, resident on Poplar Glenn, in favor of residential recycling

Larry O'Neill, resident of Maurepas, in favor of residential recycling

Robin Parent, resident of Council District 7, in favor of a parish-wide

residential recycling program

Wes Laws, (Muriel's husband), questioned the Councilmembers on what the differences were between the parish providing residential services to that of the city of Denham Springs, that was a lot smaller in area, who could provide residential services to their constituents?

The chair allowed the Councilmembers to have a very lengthy open discussion with the audience members, answering their questions. The Councilmembers were allowed to solicit information from Mr. Hains in an open forum at great length as well.

The chair concluded the discussion and recapped the residential recycling options that had been given:

- The Councilmembers would be researching costs and amounts to hold "Recycle Days"
- The Council office will work in conjunction with Mr. Hains to obtain a widget from Waste Management that will be put on the Livingston Parish Council website that will provide information to the public on obtaining residential recycling kits that will be the personal responsibility of the homeowner

The chair advised that the Council would be talking more in the future and pledged that the conversation regarding residential recycling in the Parish of Livingston would continue. He further stated that Council was committed to continue to push forward in the Parish and make it as cost effective as possible.

The chair addressed agenda item 10, Planning Department: Morningside at Juban Lakes, Senior Living, Waiver on the parking requirements, Buddy Ellis Road, Section 10, T7S, R3E, Council District No. 7", and called upon Mr. Sam Digirolamo.

Mr. Digirolamo briefly explained the need for the waiver request and explained that it was the recommendation of the Planning Commission to approve the waiver request on the parking requirements for Morningside at Juban Lakes, Senior Living.

LPR NO. 19-024

MOTION was made by R.C. "Bubba" Harris and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to approve the request for a waiver on the parking requirements for Morningside at Juban Lakes, Senior Living, being located on Buddy Ellis Road, Section 10, T7S, R3E, Council District 7.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item 11, "Parish President's Report", and called upon the Parish President, Mr. Layton Ricks to present his report.

The Parish President advised that he wished to give the Councilmembers an update on the Laurel Ridge Levee Project. He indicated that they had met with Congressman Graves and Ascension Parish President Matessa, as well as, Mayor-President Sharon Weston-Broome, back in December to find a pathway for a regional drainage approach. They were asked to consider some things in that meeting, one (1) being that they would be able to come to some sort of terms on the lawsuit that had been filed that would allow their engineers to move forward with just the design. He explained that they did not want to do any additional work at that point because of the threat of the lawsuit. He indicated that getting with our attorney, Mr. Moody, to talk with their attorneys, that they have reached an agreement that will be signed in the morning that basically stays the lawsuit, while its still pending, that allows it to remain there, if needed to be moved forward, if it should, or when, or if, they are not able to satisfy us through mitigation programs that will offset whatever the adverse effect the levee district will have on us, or if the levee itself is reworked to where it will not have any effect on us. Mr. Ricks advised the Councilmembers that they had in principle, agreed to that, and, they in turn, have agreed that there will be no construction moving forward, at all, until we are satisfied that we will not be adversely affected. He continued to explain that if, at the end of the day, that they cannot come to an agreement on that, the lawsuit moves forward as it stands now. He advised that the offset is that there are funds now available through Congressman Graves that he was able to secure that can be used for mitigation projects, should they not come to the table with a plan that will not adversely affect our Parish.

Parish President Ricks also wished to update the Councilmembers on the progress of Dunn Road. He knew that some of the members had many questions and had requested that Parish Review Engineer Chad Bacas of Forte and Tablada address those questions.

Mr. Bacas advised that they were about to submit the "ninety-five (95%) percent of the plans" for Dunn Road and there would be two (2) other submittals after that. He indicated that it was scheduled to be let in the upcoming summer. It will be a twenty-foot (20') road with a foot (1') shoulder on each side, making it roughly a twenty-two (22') foot wide road. He further advised that two-thirds (2/3rds) of the road would be closed in with storm drainage, mainly being for safety. The curved pieces were also being widened. The chair allowed Councilman Scooter Keen to ask Mr. Bacas many questions, to which he answered satisfactorily. The chair and Councilman Keen both sincerely thanked Mr. Bacas for the informative update.

The chair addressed agenda item number 12, "Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness, Resolution to approve Debris Removal and Site Management Contract awarded through the RFP process and to authorize the Parish President to sign" and called upon Mr. Mark Harrell.

Mr. Harrell came before the Councilmembers and advised that Ceres had scored the highest throughout the whole process.

Councilman Garry "Frog" Talbert questioned if this contract would be obligating the new Council? Mr. Harrell advised that he had already discussed this issue with Mr. Moody, and it did not. The chair allowed the Councilmembers to have an open discussion and ask Mr. Harrell many questions to which he answered them all.

Mr. Harrell advised that this contract would not be activated in the case of smaller emergency events such as tornados and such, those events would be handled by the Department of Public Works. This contract would be for large debris events such as hurricanes and major disasters.

Councilman Garry "Frog" Talbert questioned if this contract would include the fifty million dollars (\$50,000,000.00) that has been awarded to clean up streams and rivers? Mr. Harrell answered that they would be, as they were the same one that was doing it now. The chair asked what the Parish's percentage of the financial responsibility was for that project. Mr. Harrell explained the formulary.

Public input: Muriel Laws, resides on Poplar Glen in Woodland Crossing in Council District 6

LPR NO. 19-025

MOTION was made by R.C. "Bubba" Harris and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to approve and award the Debris Removal and Site Management Contract to Ceres for

one (1) year of standby services with the option for two (2) subsequent one (1) year renewals and authorize the Parish President to sign the contract.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

Mr. Harrell wished to announce that Saturday was a nationwide field day for HAM-operators. Councilman John Wascom concurred and further explained about the Livingston Parish Amateur Radio Club. He spoke about the 2016 Flood event when cell phones did not work, but HAM radio communications did work, making emergency services available. He briefly discussed possible upcoming resolutions to be proposed regarding the use of HAM radio communications. An audience member questioned where the field day event would be held. Mr. Harrell advised that it would be located in the parking lot on the side of the property and would begin at noon.

The chair addressed agenda item 13, "Public Hearing and Adoption of L.P. Ordinance No. 19-01, Servitude Revocation: Jason Simcoe and William Savard, Jr./Oak Hill Road".

The chair opened the Public Hearing and called upon the Council clerk to read the proposed ordinance by title.

The chair asked if there were any comment from the Councilmembers or the public in the audience. Having none, the chair closed the Public Hearing called for the vote.

LPR NO. 19-026

The following ordinance which was previously introduced in written form required for adoption at a regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council on January 10, 2019, a summary thereof having been published in the Official Journal together with a notice of public hearing which was held in accordance with said public notice, was brought up for final passage on January 24, 2019 on Motion of Tracy Girlinghouse and seconded by Tab Lobell:

L.P. ORDINANCE 19-01

AN ORDINANCE AS FOLLOWS, TO-WIT:

REVOKING THE DEDICATION, ABANDONING, AND QUITCLAIMING IN FAVOR OF JASON SIMCOE & WILLIAM SAVARD, JR., A 15' SERVITUDE, IDENTIFIED BY THE CROSS-HATCHED PORTION AS SHOWN ON THE MAP SHOWING SURVEY OF THE REVOCATION OF A 15' SERVITUDE ACROSS LOTS 41A AND 42A, LOCATED IN SECTION 16, T7S-R3E, GREENSBURG LAND DISTRICT, LIVINGSTON PARISH, LOUISIANA, BY BRETT J. MARTIN, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, DATED SEPTEMBER 20, 2017.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

And the ordinance was declared adopted on the 24th day of January 2019.

(The above and foregoing ordinance, upon final approval by the President, or the Council in case of veto by the President, shall be published in full in the Official Journal by the Clerk of the Council within fifteen (15) days of its adoption and shall be recorded in full in the Livingston Parish Council Ordinance Book No. 4).

The chair addressed agenda item 14, "<u>Public Hearing and Adoption of L.P. Ordinance No. 19-02</u>, Amend Section 2-2, "Livingston Parish Council – Regular and Special Meetings", setting the time of the meeting from six o'clock (6:00) p.m. to six-thirty (6:30) p.m.".

The chair opened the Public Hearing and called upon the Council clerk to read the proposed ordinance by title.

The chair asked if there were any comment from the Councilmembers or the public in the audience.

Ordinance Committee chairman, Councilman Garry "Frog" Talbert, explained that the committee had met and discussed this ordinance. He indicated that a recommendation from the Ordinance committee had not been made and it was left up to the pleasure of the Council.

Councilman R.C. "Bubba" Harris explained why he wished to keep the meeting time set at six o'clock (6:00) p.m. without change, giving consideration to their staff. However, he was also willing to consider the Councilmembers who had jobs that made it difficult for them to get to the meetings at six o'clock (6:00) p.m. and would vote in line with changing the time to six-thirty (6:30) p.m. The chair shared his appreciation with Councilman Harris for his change of consideration for the other Councilmembers that were affected by the time of the Council meetings.

The chair asked if there was any other input, having none he closed the Public Hearing called for the vote.

The chair shared that another purpose to change the time of the meetings was to be able to have more Ordinance committee meetings. The Ordinance committee will now be meeting an hour before each Council meeting.

LPR NO. 19-027

The following ordinance which was previously introduced in written form required for adoption at a regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council on January 10, 2019, a summary thereof having been published in the Official Journal together with a notice of public hearing which was held in accordance with said public notice, was brought up for final passage on January 24, 2019 on Motion of Tracy Girlinghouse and seconded by Jeff Averett:

L.P. ORDINANCE 19-02

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 2-2, "LIVINGSTON PARISH COUNCIL – REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS", OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF LIVINGSTON PARISH BY AMENDING THE TIME AND HOUR OF REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE LIVINGSTON PARISH COUNCIL FROM SIX O'CLOCK (6:00) P.M. TO SEVEN O'CLOCK (6:30) P.M.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

And the ordinance was declared adopted on the 24th day of January 2019.

(The above and foregoing ordinance, upon final approval by the President, or the Council in case of veto by the President, shall be published in full in the Official Journal by the Clerk of the Council

within fifteen (15) days of its adoption and shall be recorded in full in the Livingston Parish Council Ordinance Book No. 4).

The chair addressed agenda item 15, "<u>Public Hearing and Adoption of L.P. Ordinance No. 19-03</u>, Amend Drainage Impact Study ordinance by modifying the percentages and yearly requirements".

The chair opened the Public Hearing and called upon the Council clerk to read the proposed ordinance by title.

The chair asked if there were any comment from the members of the public in the audience. Having none, the chair asked if there were any comment from the Councilmembers.

Ordinance Committee chairman, Councilman Garry "Frog" Talbert, asked if Mr. Moody, Parish Legal Counsel, had left the meeting because he would like to ask him a question about implementation. He questioned when the ordinance would go into effect? Does it apply to preliminary plats that have not been accepted by the Council? What should be considered the "cut-off point"?

Mr. Moody entered the Council chambers and advised that Mr. Talbert's question proposed a complicated answer. He advised that it depended on the situation. If it were an emergency or critical safety issue, you could impose rules immediately. But in general, you should not impose rules on any kind of real estate development if they have started the process at all. If they have filed their first application, or filed for a permit, or have done any Administrative steps toward getting it, then you cannot change the rules mid-stream. He further instructed that it was rarely a problem if it was a minor change that was being made, but it could have effected how someone chose to buy or purchase the property and do the development and they may not have spent so much money if they had known that they could not have met your requirements. He advised that to be safe, he would apply this rule only to the projects that have not been started yet.

Councilman Talbert called upon Chad Bacas of Forte and Tablada, Parish Review Engineer and questioned if Mr. Bacas had any authority under the existing ordinance to make a development study twenty-five (25) year, retain twenty-five (25) year or not? Mr. Bacas responded in the negative. Councilman Talbert indicated that Mr. Bacas could make them study, just not make them retain? Mr. Bacas stated that he was correct. Mr. Bacas thought that there may be something in the ordinance that allowed the Council to request the Review Engineer to request that of the development but was unsure if it made it a requirement.

Councilman Talbert questioned that since people are being flooded, is this not a safety and welfare situation of the public?

Mr. Moody advised that the Council could declare that this was an emergency situation, it would fly across the board and set the effective date. He assured Councilman Talbert that the Council could do that, but also advised to bear in mind that they could be open to some challenge for that.

The chair acknowledged that this was a positive change and allowed the Councilmembers to have an open discussion regarding the implementation of the proposed ordinance.

The chair asked if there was any other input, having none, he closed the Public Hearing called for the vote.

The clerk noted that she had been advised that the Ordinance committee had recommended several changes to the proposed ordinance that had been previously introduced.

Councilman Talbert directed the Councilmembers to their meeting packets and explained the changes proposed by the Ordinance committee.

The proposed changes are as follows:

In Section 13-57 Drainage/Drainage impact study:

Remove:

(e) (3) The proposed development results in no more than a ten (10) percent increase in the ten-year pre-development peak discharge at the point of discharge from the development site.

Whereby making part (e) (4), part (e) (3) as follows:

(e) (3) (4) The site is located within existing developed areas which are served by a network of public storm drainage facilities which were designed to accommodate runoff from the development site.

The ordinance shall be amended as follows:

Section 13-57 Drainage/Drainage impact study

- (a) Installation of subsurface drainage is prohibited in any subdivision designed for open ditches without a required culvert permit and written approval of parish president's office.
- (e) (3) The proposed development results in no more than a ten (10) percent increase in the ten-year pre-development peak discharge at the point of discharge from the development site.
- (e) (3) (4) The site is located within existing developed areas which are served by a network of public storm drainage facilities which were designed to accommodate runoff from the development site.

In Section 13-57.1 Drainage impact study/drainage design requirements:

The words, "<u>Ten year</u>", were added back in by the recommendation of the Parish Review Engineer under part (b) Watershed map-subsection (4) and part (c) Hydrologic design-subsection (1) and (2)

- (b) Watershed map.
 - (4) The pre-development and post-development ten ten (10) year, twenty-five (25) year and one hundred (100) year run-off rate and water surface must be shown at all entrance and exit points of the development. Twenty-five-year run-off rate and water surface may be required by review engineer.
- (c) Hydrologic design.
 - (1) The drainage impact analysis shall indicate existing condition peak ten ten (10) year, twenty-five (25) year and one hundred (100) year flow rates at the development entry and exit points. Twenty-five-year run-off flow rates may be required by review engineer.
 - (2) The drainage impact analysis shall indicate future condition peak ten ten (10) year, twenty-five (25) year and one hundred (100) year flow rates at the development entry and exit points. Twenty five year flow rates may be required by review engineer.

The Councilmembers wished to make an amendment to the effective date of this ordinance, whereby making it effective, Monday, February 25, 2019.

Mr. Moody suggested that they were assuming that it would be signed by the Parish President. He recommended that the additional amendment to the proposed ordinance regarding the effective date state:

This ordinance shall become effective upon the signature of the Parish President.

Mr. Moody recommended that the Council re-open the Public Hearing as there had been so many amendments made to the proposed ordinance, giving the public an opportunity to speak if they so wished.

The chair opened the Public Hearing for the public to have an opportunity to speak on the amendments that were being proposed on L.P. No. 19-03.

Having no comments from the audience, the chair requested if the Councilmembers had any input that they wished to address on the proposed amendments. Having none, the chair closed the Public Hearing.

LPR NO. 19-028

MOTION was made by Maurice "Scooter" Keen and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to amend proposed ordinance, L.P. No. 19-03, as follows:

In Section 13-57 Drainage/Drainage impact study:

Remove:

(e) (3) The proposed development results in no more than a ten (10) percent increase in the ten-year pre-development peak discharge at the point of discharge from the development site.

Whereby making part (e) (4), part (e) (3) as follows:

(e) (3) (4) The site is located within existing developed areas which are served by a network of public storm drainage facilities which were designed to accommodate runoff from the development site.

The ordinance shall be amended as follows:

Section 13-57 Drainage/Drainage impact study

- (b) Installation of subsurface drainage is prohibited in any subdivision designed for open ditches without a required culvert permit and written approval of parish president's office.
- (e) (3) The proposed development results in no more than a ten (10) percent increase in the ten-year pre-development peak discharge at the point of discharge from the development site.
- (e) (3) (4) The site is located within existing developed areas which are served by a network of public storm drainage facilities which were designed to accommodate runoff from the development site.

In Section 13-57.1 Drainage impact study/drainage design requirements:

The words, "<u>Ten year</u>", were added back in by the recommendation of the Parish Review Engineer under part (b) Watershed map-subsection (4) and part (c) Hydrologic design-subsection (1) and (2)

- (b) Watershed map.
 - (4) The pre-development and post-development ten ten (10) year, twenty-five (25) year and one hundred (100) year run-off rate and water surface must be shown at all entrance and exit points of the development. Twenty-five-year run-off rate and water surface may be required by review engineer.
- (c) Hydrologic design.
 - (1) The drainage impact analysis shall indicate existing condition peak ten ten (10) year, twenty-five (25) year and one hundred (100) year flow rates at the development entry and exit points. Twenty-five year run off flow rates may be required by review engineer.
 - (2) The drainage impact analysis shall indicate future condition peak ten ten (10) year, twenty-five (25) year and one hundred (100) year flow rates at the development entry and exit points. Twenty-five year flow rates may be required by review engineer.

Adding:

This ordinance shall become effective upon the signature of the Parish President.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 19-029

The following ordinance which was previously introduced in written form required for adoption at a regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council on January 10, 2019, a summary thereof having been published in the Official Journal together with a notice of public hearing which was held in accordance with said public notice, was brought up for final passage on January 24, 2019 on Motion of Jeff Averett and seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to adopt as amended:

L.P. ORDINANCE 19-03

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 13, "PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT," SECTION 13-49.3, "SUBMITTALS", SECTION 13-50, "PROCEDURES FOR SUBDIVISIONS WITH IMPROVEMENTS", SECTION 13-57, "DRAINAGE/DRAINAGE IMPACT STUDY", SECTION 13-57.1, "DRAINAGE IMPACT STUDY/DRAINAGE DESIGN REQUIREMENTS",

SECTION 13-59, "DRIVEWAY CULVERTS AND/OR SUBSURFACE DRAINAGE", SECTION 13-66.2, "MOBILE HOME PARKS", OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES IN AND FOR THE PARISH OF LIVINGSTON.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

And the ordinance was declared adopted as amended on the 24th day of January 2019.

(The above and foregoing ordinance, upon final approval by the President, or the Council in case of veto by the President, shall be published in full in the Official Journal by the Clerk of the Council within fifteen (15) days of its adoption and shall be recorded in full in the Livingston Parish Council Ordinance Book No. 4).

The chair addressed agenda item number 16, "<u>Introduction of Ordinance: Amend Section 13-49.3</u>, "Requirements for Minor Subdivisions", making allowances to footage requirements and building lines when approved community sewer systems are available" and called upon the Council clerk to read the ordinance by title.

Councilman John Wascom discussed why the proposed ordinance was needed.

The following ordinance was introduced in proper written form and read by title, to wit:

L.P. ORDINANCE 19-04

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 13, "PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT," SECTION 13-49.6, "REQUIREMENTS FOR MINOR SUBDIVISIONS," BY ADDING PROVISIONS TO PART (B), OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES IN AND FOR THE PARISH OF LIVINGSTON.

LPR NO. 19-030

MOTION was offered by John Wascom and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to publish the ordinance by title in the Official Journal in accordance with the legal mandates and set a Public Hearing for Thursday, February 7, 2019 at the hour of six-thirty (6:30) p.m. at the Parish Council Chambers in the Governmental Building located at 20355 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana, at which time comments will be received on the proposed ordinance prior to a Council vote.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item 17, "<u>Introduction of ordinance</u>: Modify and expand the existing boundaries of Juban Trails Community Development District" and called upon Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse.

Councilman Girlinghouse advised that this Community Development District was located in his district and he wished to call upon Mr. Clo Fontenot that was in the audience to explain the specifics of the proposed boundary expansion.

Public Input: Patrice Joiner

The chair allowed an open discussion for Mr. Fontenot and the Councilmembers to answer Ms. Joiner's questions.

The following ordinance was introduced in proper written form and read by title, to wit:

L.P. ORDINANCE NO. 19-05

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING AND AMENDING L.P. ORDINANCE NO. 16-09 ADOPTED ON APRIL 28, 2016 TO EXPAND THE EXISTING BOUNDARIES OF JUBAN TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PURSUANT TO AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH LA. R.S. 33:9039.14; AND FURTHER PROVIDING FOR OTHER RELATED MATTERS.

LPR NO. 19-031

MOTION was offered by Tracy Girlinghouse and duly seconded by Garry "Frog" Talbert to publish the ordinance by title in the Official Journal in accordance with the legal mandates and set a Public Hearing for Thursday, February 28, 2019 at the hour of sixthirty (6:30) p.m. at the Parish Council Chambers in the Governmental Building located at 20355 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana, at which time comments will be received on the proposed ordinance prior to a Council vote.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item(s) 18a through e, "Board (re)appointment(s) and Accept Board resignation":

LPR NO. 19-032

MOTION was made by Jeff Averett and duly seconded by John Wascom to appoint Denver Cassels (resident of Council District 4 and board appointment of the Livingston Parish Council - - filling the expired term of Harry Wells) to the Livingston Parish Airport District, whose five (5) year term will expire on January 1, 2024.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 19-033

MOTION was made by Tab Lobell and duly seconded by Jeff Averett to accept the resignation of Shelley Davis, her resignation letter being received by the Livingston Parish Council office (resident of Council District 8) whereby she is resigning from the Livingston Parish Library Board, effective date being November 28, 2018, whose remaining five (5) year term will expire on June 30, 2019.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 19-034

MOTION was made by Tab Lobell and duly seconded by Jeff Averett to appoint Larry O'Neill (resident of Council District 8) to the Livingston Parish Library Board, whose appointment will fill the vacancy left by the resignation of board member Shelley Davis, whereby said appointment term will be to serve the remainder of that five (5) year term vacancy that will expire on June 30, 2019.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 19-035

MOTION was made by Tab Lobell and duly seconded by Jeff Averett to ratify the board reappointment of Columbus "Dwight" Hutchinson (resident of Council District 8 and board member appointment belonging to Fire Protection District No. 2 as per R.S. 40:1496) to Fire Protection District No. 2, whose two (2) year term will expire on January 1, 2020.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 19-036

MOTION was made by John Wascom and duly seconded by Garry "Frog" Talbert to accept the resignation of David Drake (resident of Council District 4), from Fire Protection District No. 5, whose term expired on January 1, 2019.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 19-037

MOTION was made by John Wascom and duly seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to appoint Chris Kinchen (resident of Council District 4 – replacing the vacancy left by board member David Drake) to Fire Protection District No. 5, whose two (2) year term will expire on January 1, 2021.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item 18e, "Livingston Parish Sewer District Board Appointment" and called upon Councilman John Wascom.

Councilman Wascom requested that this item be pulled from the agenda and postponed until he could work out some more details.

The chair announced that this agenda item was being tabled.

The chair addressed agenda item 19:

Reconsideration of:

Live Oak Acres

Request for a waiver of L.P. Ordinance No. 17-22, "Mobile Homes in Subdivisions: Prohibitions and Restrictions of Use" to place a mobile home on a lot addressed at 25081 Denver Street, Denham Springs, LA 70726 located in Live Oak Acres, being a named subdivision, in Council District 5, off of LA Highway 16 – Garry Talbert

The chair requested if there was any discussion from the audience on this particular line item. Having none, the chair requested if there was any discussion from the Councilmembers on this agenda item?

Councilman R.C. "Bubba" Harris wished to speak and advised that it was Councilman Garry Talbert who had put this back on the agenda. He discussed the purpose and intent of the ordinance and stated his position on this matter.

Councilman Jeff Averett wished to question how the Council could deny this waiver request when there were other mobile homes in this subdivision?

The chair requested to help answer and clarify this question. He explained that the Council had written an ordinance to protect the property values in the higher end subdivisions by not allowing the placement of mobile homes inside named subdivisions that was intended for the purpose of the stick-built homes. He felt that it had been a very successful ordinance and was very proud of it. He also felt that it did protect property values inside those subdivisions.

He explained why he had originally voted the way that he had, however, other information had been presented and communicated to the Councilmembers, and now that intent is no longer valid to the best of his knowledge.

Councilman Harris wished to give some little-known background history on previous mobile home placement in this subdivision.

Councilman Talbert explained why he put this item back on the agenda. He gave a very lengthy account of how he became involved in this issue and qualified his affirmative vote.

Councilman Harris advised that he was representing the requests of the constituents of his district.

The chair ended the discussion and called for the vote.

LPR NO. 19-038

MOTION was made by Garry "Frog" Talbert and duly seconded by Maurice "Scooter" Keen to give reconsideration and **grant a waiver** of L.P. Ordinance No. 17-22, "Mobile Homes in Subdivisions: Prohibitions and Restrictions of Use" and **allow the placement of a mobile home** on a lot addressed at:

Subdivision: Live Oak Acres

Address: 25081 Denver Street, Denham Springs, LA 70726, located off of LA Highway 16

in Council District 5

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. AVERETT, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. KEEN,

MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK

NAYS: MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 19-039

MOTION was made by Tab Lobell and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to name an unnamed road, "Church Branch Road", road being located off of Louisiana Highway 444 being situated in the municipality of the Town of Killian, in Council District 8, road name being approved in writing by Wendy Boully, Assistant Permit Director, on January 23, 2019.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. AVERETT, MR. HARRIS, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. KEEN, MR. WASCOM, MR. MACK

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 19-040

MOTION was made by Tracy Girlinghouse and duly seconded by Maurice "Scooter" Keen to create a three-way stop and add signage at the intersection(s) of:

• Creek Haven and Creek Bend

• Creek Valley and Creek Bend

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. AVERETT, MR. HARRIS, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. KEEN, MR. WASCOM, MR. MACK

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item 22, "Add for consideration to Priority Road List:

- a. Parkway Drive in South Haven Jeff Averett
- b. Dutch Lane; Remainder of Swamp Drive; Cedar Street Tab Lobell
- c. Beregi Street; Elsie Street Shane Mack

LPR NO. 19-041

MOTION was made by Jeff Averett and duly seconded by John Wascom to add for consideration the following roads to the 2018 Livingston Parish Road Improvement Program Road Analysis and Assessment – 3 Year Priority Road List as follows:

- Parkway Drive in South Haven Subdivision Council District 6
- Dutch Lane Council District 8
- The remainder of Swamp Drive Council District 8
- Cedar Street Council District 8
- Beregi Street Council District 9
- Elsie Lane (formerly known as Lowe Lane) Council District 9

2018 LIVINGSTON PARISH ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ROAD ANALYSIS AND ASSESSMENT - 3 YEAR PRIORITY LIST

Road Name	Council District	Priority Rank	Priority Score	LP Resolution Number	Date Adopted
Spring Lake Drive (South Section)	1	1	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Chapel Hill Drive	2	2	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
D'Evereaux Drive	2	3	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Norfolk Drive	2	4	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
R. Dawes Drive	2	5	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Destrehan Avenue	2	6	Under contract	LPR NO. 16-065	February 11, 2016
Creek Haven Lane	2	7	Under contract	LPR NO. 18-273 LPR NO. 17-396	September 13, 2018 December 14, 2017
Creek Valley Drive	3	8	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Clear Creek Drive	3	9	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Creek Bend Avenue	3	10	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Hollow Creek Court	3	11	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Creek Hollow Court	3	12	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Dixie Street	4	13	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Woodland Street (North Section)	4	14	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
North Woodcrest	4	15	Under contract	LPR NO. 18-273	September 13, 2018
Summers Street	4	16	Under contract	LPR No. 18-273	September 13, 2018
Springhill Drive	5	17	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Joe May Road (North Section)	6	18	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Briar Oak Drive	7	19	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Deerfield Drive	7	20	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Winter Ridge Drive	7	21	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017

Fawnwood Drive	7	22	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
River Highlands Drive	8	23	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
James Chapel Road (West Section)	9	24	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
James Chapel Road (East Section)	9	25	Under contract	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
South Satsuma Road (b/t Drakeford McMorris	6 and I-12)	26	n/a	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Bonnie Bleu Drive	6	27	n/a (added twice)	LPR NO. 16-266 LPR NO. 18-216	July 24, 2016 July 12, 2018
Henry White Road	9	28	n/a	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Bull Run Road (South Section)	8	29	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Gum Swamp Road (North Section)	8	30	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
George White Road (East Section)	9	31	n/a	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Bull Run Road (North Section)	8	32	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Gum Swamp Road (South Section)	8	33	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
George White Road (West Section)	9	34	n/a	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
South Satsuma Road (b/t Perrilloux Road and I	6 Drakeford	35 McMor	n/a rris)	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Wagner Road (West Section)	9	36	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Caraway Road	2	37	n/a	LPR NO. 15-095	March 17, 2015
Perkins Road South	3	38	n/a	LPR NO. 15-095	March 17, 2015
South Satsuma Road (b/t LA 42 and Perrilloux	6 Road)	39	n/a	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Perkins Road North	2	40	n/a	LPR NO. 15-095	March 17, 2015
Henry Road (North Section)	8	41	n/a	LPR NO. 15-086	March 12, 2015
Pine Street	9	42	n/a	LPR NO. 16-199	May 26, 2016
Debbie Lane	5	43	n/a	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Pine Bluff Road	4	44	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Harris Road	5	45	n/a	LPR NO. 16-044	January 28, 2016
Ball Park Road	7	46	n/a	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015

Sidney Woods Road	9	47	n/a	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Jason Drive	4	48	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Wagner Road (East Section)	9	49	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Old CC Road (formerly known as Slaugh	9 nter Pen R	50 Road)	n/a	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Peak Lane	7	51	n/a	LPR NO. 15-215	August 23, 2015
Crain Road	9	52	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Desert Willow Avenue John Barber Road	4 9	53 54	n/a n/a	LPR NO. 17-016 LPR NO. 16-086	January 12, 2017 February 25, 2016
Hillon Hood Road	5	55	n/a	LPR NO. 16-044	January 28, 2016
Greystone Drive	5	56	n/a	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Timberwood Drive	7	57	n/a	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Springlake Drive (North Section)	1	58	n/a	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Woodland Street (South Section)	4	59	n/a	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
Pete Smith Road	9	60	n/a	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Charles Holden Road	9	61	n/a	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Nature's Way	1	62	n/a	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Live Oak Village Road	2	63	n/a	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Christopher Drive	7	64	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Sunset Lane/Ballard Lane	7	65	n/a	LPR NO. 16-065	February 11, 2016
Leader Road	8	66	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Henry Road (South Section)	8	67	n/a	LPR NO. 15-086	March 12, 2015
West Anne Drive	7	68	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
South Anne Drive	7	69	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
North Achord Road	1	70	n/a	LPR NO. 15-167	June 11, 2015
Canyon Road	5	71	n/a	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Luke Lane	7	72	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Sandra Drive	7	73	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Maxwell Drive	7	74	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Lynn Street	7	75	n/a	LPR NO. 15-095	March 17, 2015
Herman Ernest Road (Phase 2 – Off of Caraway)	2	76	n/a	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015

Kingfisher Street	2	77	n/a	LPR NO. 17-055	February 9, 2017
Karli Lane (Phase 2 – Off of Ross Tra	9 ail/Wagne	78 r Road)	n/a	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Olah Lane	9	79	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Bush Lane	2	80	n/a	LPR NO. 16-044	January 28, 2016

Roads that are nominated for consideration to amend the Priority List	Council District	Priority Score	Resolution Number	Resolution Date of
<u> </u>	2 1501 100		1 (4112.002	Adoption
North Doyle Road	1	tbs	LPR NO. 17-092	March 9, 2017
McLin Road	1	tbs	LPR NO. 17-092	March 9, 2017
Cedar Street	1	tbs	LPR No. 18-041	February 8, 2018
Sims Road	2	tbs	LPR NO. 17-266	August 10, 2017
Dunn Road	3	tbs	LPR NO. 17-275	August 24, 2017
Clinton Allen Road	3	tbs	LPR NO. 18-245	August 9, 2018
Cottonwood Drive	4	tbs	LPR NO. 17-092	March 9, 2017
Brookfield Drive	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-158	May 10, 2018
Carolyn Avenue	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-158	May 10, 2018
Summers Street	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-158	May 10, 2018
Sharon Street	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-158	May 10, 2018
North Woodcrest Avenue	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-158	May 10, 2018
Canterbury Avenue	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
New Port Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Balmoral Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Timberlake Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Shady Hollow Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Timber Ridge Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Alder Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Stonehenge Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Abbey Lane (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Coronation Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Buckingham Avenue (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Windsor Avenue (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Hampton Court (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Wimbledon Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Big Ben Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018

Parliament Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Parkwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Greenwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Havenwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Hollyridge Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Glenbrooke Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Mulberry Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Hazelwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Willow Wood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Burlwood Avenue (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Poplar Glen Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Bonnie Bleu Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Robindale Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Millstone Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Cottonwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Avondale Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Silverwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Maplewood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Sprucewood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Pinebrook Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Mimosa Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Bell Wood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Palmwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Ribbonwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Buffwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Sagewood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Wynnewood Avenue (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Myrtle Wood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Bronzewood Avenue (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Birchwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Mirkwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Jimmy Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Duff Road	7	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Texas Street	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Fountain View Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018

Ruby Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Diamond Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Garnet Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Lake Terrace Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Sapphire Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Rosemont Avenue (South Point Subdivision)	5	tbs	LPR NO. 18-362	December 6, 2018
Meadow Wood Boulevard	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Myrtle Street	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Phillip Richardson Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Richardson Lane	8	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Swamp Drive (Remainder of what did not get completed from previous overlay)	8	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Parkway Drive in South Haven Subdivision	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Dutch Lane	8	tbs	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Remainder of Swamp Drive	8	tbs	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Cedar Street	8	tbs	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Beregi Street	9	tbs	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Elsie Lane (formerly known as Lowe Lane)	9	tbs	LPR NO. 14-041	January 24, 2019

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. AVERETT, MR. HARRIS, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. KEEN,

MR. WASCOM, MR. MACK

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item 23, "Discussion of installation of speed bumps on D. Hutchinson Road located off of Hwy 442 in Holden".

He explained that one of his constituents contacted him about receiving help on a dead-end parishmaintained road that he resides on and is raising his grandchildren on. He advised of needless speeding that was taking place and was greatly concerned over the safety of his grandchildren. The chair opened the floor for discussion and suggested that maybe the Ordinance committee could perhaps write an ordinance on speed bump regulations. A discussion was held on the difference between Speed bumps and Speed humps. A lengthy discussion was held, and it was determined this agenda item needed to be sent to committee.

The chair addressed agenda item 24, "District Attorney Report(s):" and called upon Mr. Christopher Moody. Mr. Moody advised that he did not have anything to report at this time.

The chair addressed agenda item 25, "Committee Reports", and called upon Councilman Garry Talbert to report on the Ordinance committee. Councilman John Wascom, in the absence of Mr. Talbert, advised that the committee had a good meeting. Everything that was discussed was picked up at the Council meeting, and Councilman Wascom wished to acknowledge that he was the cochair of the Ordinance committee. The chair agreed with Councilman Wascom's statements. He acknowledged the committee's effectiveness and their achievements that were carried over into the Council meeting.

Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse advised that he did not have anything to report regarding the Finance Committee.

The chair advised under Councilmen's comments that Ms. Tammy Crawford has requested that the Council announce the March 10, 2019 golf tournament to be held at the Greystone Golf Country Club that will benefit the gifted kids travel program who will be taking a trip to Italy this

summer. There will be door prizes, raffle tickets, a silent auction, and an alfredo dinner provided by Los Sombreros. They may be contacted at gmail.com or visit their page on Facebook. There are different levels of sponsorship available and anyone wishing to make a donation will be appreciated.

Councilman Shane Mack encouraged everyone to participate and help these kids make their financial goals to be able to go on their trip to Italy.

Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse wished to bring up a few things to the Ordinance Review committee.

He advised that he had been contacted by James Wascom, Fire Chief of Fire Protection District No. 4. Chief Wascom had expressed concern regarding when new developments (apartment complexes, buildings, etc.) come in, the fire department has to go out and do an evaluation. So, they have to spend money and personnel to do the drawing. Chief Wascom requested that Councilman Girlinghouse address that when the Council gives approval for these developments, can the Council require that the developers send the digital drawings of the development to the fire districts and require an email verification that the fire districts received the digital format. It will save the fire districts money and also save them time.

He also would like the Council to form a committee to go over the Master Plan as it relates specifically to zoning and traffic studies. He would like them to decide on how many members, it does not have to be Councilmembers on the committee, they could appoint someone, the Council could give directive and they could go over what they would want to be changed and then present it to the Council. The Councilmembers all seems agreeable and liked this idea that Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse presented.

Councilman Garry Talbert advised that the Ordinance Committee would be meeting on Thursday, February 7, 2019 at five-thirty (5:30) p.m.

Having no further business, a motion to adjourn was requested until the next regular meeting scheduled on Thursday, February 7, 2019, at the hour of six-thirty (6:30) o'clock p.m. in Livingston, Louisiana.

LPR NO. 19-042

MOTION was offered by Tab Lobell and duly seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to adjourn the January 24, 2019 regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. LOBELL, MR. MACK, MR. AVERETT, MR. TALBERT, MR. KEEN,

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. HARRIS, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

______/s/_Sandy C. Teal
Sandy C. Teal, Council Clerk

ndy C. Teal, Council Clerk Shane Mack, Council Chairman